Davide e Luigi Volpi S.p.A. Via San Rocco, 10 46040 CASALROMANO MN ITALIA



COMPANY WITH QUALITY SYSTEM MANAGEMENT CERTIFIED BY ICIM = ISO 9001 =

PEUJEHIN

# **Potatore a catena Cordless**

# **Cordless Electronic Chainsaw**

# KVS5100



00 5

Manuale d'uso - User Manual





WARNING: CAREFULLY READ ALL THE PAGES AND ILLUSTRATIONS BEFORE USING THE TOOL FOR THE FIRST TIME

#### Indice

1.	Safety symbols	25
2.	General safety information for electric tools	27
3.	Special safety instructions	29
4.	Intended use	32
5.	Description of the features	32
6.	Overview of the tool	32
7.	List of components	34
8.	Technical specifications	34
9.	Battery charging	35
10.		35
11.	Initial assembly	36
12.	Early working procedures	36
13.	Instructions for cutting Cleaning and maintenance	37
14.	Cleaning and maintenance	38
15.	Storage Disposal	43
16.	Disposal	43
17.	Spare parts	44
18.	Warranty	44
19.	Troubleshooting	45
20.		46

#### Safety information

Before using the machine for the first time, carefully read this instruction manual for your own safety and for the safety of others. Keep this manual in a safe place and make it available to any new owners to ensure the information here reported is always available.

# 1. Safety symbols

This section includes the safety indications for the use of this machine.



#### 1.1. Symbols in the manual







explode

# 1.3. Symbols on the battery charger

Danger indication

Use the battery charger indoor only

Safety temperature limiter



Wear protective glasses



Weare protective shoes

With non-slip sole



Do not use the tool in case of rain or

on wet branches



Do not dispose of in household waste

Do not disassemble the battery



Battery can be recharged and recycled.

Used batteries must be collected with respect for the environment.



Isolation class II



Electrical equipment, do not throw away

with household waste

# 2. General safety information for electric tools



#### Warning! Carefully read these safety instructions!

Failure to follow the safety instructions can result in electric shock and / or serious injury.

#### Keep all safety instructions for future use.

The term "power tool" used in the safety instructions refers to corded tools connected to the electrical distribution and to cordless tools.

#### 2.1. Safety of the work area

- Keep the work area clean and well lit. Untidy and dark work areas can cause accidents.
- Do not use the power tool in flammable or explosive atmospheres, such as in the presence of flammable liquids, gases or dusts. The electric tool can generate sparks that can ignite flammable dust or fumes.
- Keep children and passersby away while using the power tool, distractions can cause you to lose control of the tool.

#### 2.2. Electric safety for the battery charger

- The plug of the charger must match the power outlet. Do not modify the socket. Do not modify the plug for any reason. Do not use adapters if the tool plug has a ground connection. Proper use of unmodified plugs with compatible sockets reduces the risk of electric shock.
- Avoid body contact with earthed surfaces such as pipes, radiators, coolers. There is a greater risk of electric shock if your body comes into contact with objects that discharge to the ground
- Do not expose the instrument to rain or humid conditions. Any water entering the charger can create a risk of electric shock.
- Do not mishandle the cable. Do not use the cable to move, pull or disconnect the charger.
- Keep the cable away from sources of heat, oil, sharp edges and moving parts. A damaged or tangled cord can increase the risk of electric shock.
- If the charger is used outdoors, use an extension cable suitable for outdoor use. The use of a suitable cable reduces the risk of electric shock.
- If it is not possible to avoid using the charger in a humid area, use a power supply with an RCD differential switch. The use of a differential switch reduces the risk of electric shock.

#### 2.3. Warnings for the use of tools

• People using a chainsaw for the first time must first perform the necessary cutting exercises on a tripod.

• The chainsaw may bounce if it encounters an object that is too hard or if the bar suddenly jams or stops.





• When the bar is used for cutting from top to bottom, the tension direction of the saw is opposite to that of the operator.



• When the guide plate is used for a bottom-up cut, the pushing direction of the saw is towards the operator.



- Do not overload the tool, selecting a suitable tool for the purpose makes work safer and more efficient
- Do not use the tool if the switch does not work properly. The tool must be repaired if the switch does not work properly.
- Disconnect the battery from the tool before making adjustments, repairs and before putting the tool away. This will reduce the risk of inadvertent tool implementation.
- Keep the tool away from children, do not allow people who are not trained to use the tool to use it
- Perform tool maintenance. Check the tool and moving parts, damaged components can cause accidents and injuries. Proper maintenance of the tool can reduce the risk of accidents.
- Keep the chain clean and regularly oiled. This makes the tool more controllable and reduces the risk of tool locking.
- Do not operate the chainsaw above shoulder height.
- Read the manual before using the tool, select the tool and accessories correctly to avoid accidents.

#### 2.4. Warnings for the use of the battery-powered tools

- Use only the charger specified by the manufacturer. The use of battery chargers can damage the battery and cause risk of fire and explosion.
- The tool is designed for use with the original battery only. The use of different batteries can damage the tool and increase the risk of injury.
- The battery should be stored away from metal parts (such as coins, paper clips, nails, screws). A short circuit can cause a fire.
- The incorrect use can cause leakage from the battery. In case of contact with the liquid, wash thoroughly with water and consult a doctor. Liquid leaking from the battery can cause injury and burns.

#### 2.5. Personal Safety

- While using the tool, stay focused, do not distract, use common sense. Do not use the tool if you are too tired or under the influence of medicines, drugs, alcohol or other substances.
- A moment of inattention can result in serious personal injury.
- Use the personal protective equipment indicated in this manual to reduce the risk of personal injury (gloves, glasses, visor, appropriate shoes or boots, helmet).
- Carrying the tool with your finger on the trigger can cause hazard of accidental operation.
- Remove all repair keys and tools before turning on the switch. A key connected to moving parts can cause personal injury.
- Don't get unbalanced. Maintain the correct balance of the body in every situation. This allows a better control of the tool in case of unexpected situations.
- Use with appropriate clothing. Do not use with loose clothing or jewelry. Keep clothes, gloves and hair away from moving parts to prevent them from getting entangled.

# 3. Special safety instructions

#### 3.1. Special safety instructions for chain saws

- Keep passers-by and other people at a minimum safety distance of 1.5m, do not move the tool while the chain is moving. Keep each part of your body at least 15cm away from the chain. Careful use of the tool can avoid injury.
- Handle the tool only when the chain is stopped. Protect the chain during storage to reduce the risk of injury.
- Take up the chainsaw only as described above because during the use the chain may come into contact with electric cables and cause electric shock if your hands are in contact with metal parts.
- Wear safety glasses and hearing protection. Additional protective equipments for the head, hands, legs and feet are recommended. Full protective clothing will reduce personal injury from flying debris or accidental contact with the chain.
- Ensure to stand firmly and on a safe and plain surface before switching on the chainsaw. Slippery or unstable surfaces, such as stairs, can cause the chainsaw to lose balance or control.
- Be careful that thin materials could jam the chain when cutting shrubs or small trees and could hit the operator.
- Do not use the chainsaw for different purposes than that for which it is intended. For example, do not use your chainsaw to cut plastic, stone, or non-wood building materials. The use of the chainsaw for different purposes than the intended involves risks for the operator.



- During a cut, if the head of the bar touches an object and crushes the chain, bouncing can occur.
- Do not rely solely on the safety equipment fitted to the chainsaw.
- A variety of measures must be taken to prevent accidents or personal injury during operations.
- To avoid sudden bounces, hold the saw firmly. Adjust body and arms position to avoid bouncing. The operator can control the rebound force if following the necessary precautions.
- Do not extend your arms too much while cutting and do not hold the tool higher than the shoulders.
- Use only replacement bars and chains specified by the manufacturer. Improper replacement of bars or chains can cause the chain to break and / or rebound.

#### 3.2. Altre istruzioni di sicurezza



protective shoes with non-slip soles.



Use protective glasses



Use protective gloves.

- Do not wear loose clothing or jewelry that could get tangled in moving parts.
- Pay attention, do not get distracted, use common sense when using the tool. Do not use the tool if excessively tired or under the influence of drugs, drugs, alcohol or other substances.
- Do not use the chainsaw in rainy weather.
- The tool is designed for pruning branches, do not use on hard wood or other objects.
- Do not try to unlock the chain if the tool is blocked before turning off the tool.
- Before starting pruning, check that there are not hidden objects and cables between the branches.
- During use, firmly grab the tool and keep the chain at a distance of at least 15 cm from the rest of the body.
- Do not use the tool near flammable liquids or gases to avoid the risk of fire or explosion.
- The wear of the chain must be checked regularly. Damages resulting from use with a chain and / or bar in poor condition are not covered by the warranty.
- Do not try to repair the tool yourself, always bring the tool to service centers in case of need for repairs. All repair and maintenance operations not described in this manual must be carried out by the service center.

#### 3.3. . Special safety instructions for battery-powered tools

- The charger is designed for indoor use. Charging operations must be made indoor.
- Remove the battery before cleaning the charger to avoid damages and the risk of electric shock.
- Do not expose the battery to the sun or bright light. Do not place it into contact with hot surfaces. It could cause the battery to explode.
- Allow the battery to cool completely before starting charging.
- Do not disassemble or damage the battery to avoid personal injury

#### 3.4. Correct use of the battery charger

- Use the battery charger only with rechargeable batteries. Otherwise it could cause fire and explosions. Use only the original battery charger.
- Always check the charger, the cable and the plug before each use. If damaged, ask to the service center for repair or replacement. Do not use damaged chargers. Do not try to repair damaged battery chargers to keep the tool safe.
- Check that the voltage of the charger matches the one of the battery, otherwise it may cause personal ٠ injury.
- Keep the charger clean, away from humid environments and rain. Do not use the charger outdoors: • dirt and water may cause damages to the charger and personal injury.
- The charger is designed for use with original batteries, otherwise it may cause risk of fire or explosions. •
- Do not use damaged chargers to reduce the risk of injury. •
- Do not use the charger on flammable surfaces (eg. paper). •
- The battery is not fully charged on first use, it must be charged for 3/4 hours before first use.
- The normal charging time is 3/4 hours, do not charge the battery for too long to avoid damaging it.
- Supervise the charging time by the LED indicator (red light in charge, green light end of charge). •

#### **3.5.** Attention (Residual risks)

Use the tool carefully in order to avoid the following risks:

- Cuts and wounds caused by sharp edges •
- Use for prolonged times or in incorrect positions can cause damage to your body in the long term.



The device can produce electromagnetic waves and interfere with electro-medical devices. It is recommended to consult a doctor before using this tool with electro-medical devices.



Do not touch the chain when the battery is on the tool. Keep a minimum distance of 15cm between the chain and any part of the body. Keep passers-by and other people at a minimum distance of 1.5m



# Warning!

In particular situations, the chain and the handle could reach high temperatures. It is recommended to handle the tool with care using protective gloves.

Noise and Vibration Measurements:

Sound pressure level: < 70 dB(A)

Max vibration during use: < 2.5 m/s<sup>2</sup>



#### 3.6. Tool safety requirements

The chainsaw is safe if it meets the following requirements:

- 1. The chain is not damaged
- 2. The chain tension is correct
- 3. The bar is not deformed
- 4. The bar slot is intact
- 5. The chainsaw is clean and dry
- 6. The handle is intact
- 7. The safety switch and the trigger work properly

- 8. Lubrication works properly
- 9. The depth of the slot of the tooth between the wheel and chain does not exceed 0.5mm
  10. Bar and chain are assembled correctly as specified in this manual

11. Any accessories used are conform and original

12. The oil cap is closed correctly

#### 4. Intended use

The tool is designed for pruning branches only.

A different use than indicated can damage the tool and cause dangers.

The tool is designed for adult use only, do not use in rainy weather or to work on wet plants or bushes. The manufacturer is not responsible for damages caused by the non-observance of the instructions in this manual.



Check the correct tension and sharpening of the chain before using the tool.

Damages caused by the use of an not sharpened and / or incorrectly tensioned chain are not covered by the warranty.

#### 5. Description of the features

The tool is suitable for pruning branches and cutting small diameter trees. The ergonomic handle allows to work safely. It is recommended to comply with the warnings contained in this user manual. In case of danger or malfunction release the trigger, the chain will stop to prevent damage or injuries.

#### 6. Overview of the tool

- 1) Chain
- 2) Bar
- 3) Chain protection
- 4) Oil cap
- 5) Safety trigger
- 6) Trigger
- 7) Handle

- 8) Battery housing
- 9) Hand protection
- 10) Pinion cover
- 11) Counter locking nut
- 12) Chain tension adjustement screw
- 13) Battery
- 14) 3 ways battery charger





# 7. List of components

Open the packaging carefully and check all the components listed below:

- Electronic chainsaw
- 2 Batteries
- Battery charger

- Toolbox
- bar cover
- user's manual

# 8. Technical specifications

	Electronic saw with lith	ium battery
1	Maximum cutting dimensions	80 mm
2	Chain speed	11 m/s
3	Bar lenght	9,0 cm – 5″
4	Chain	1/4 x 1,1 - 32 links
5	Chain tension adjustment	Manual
6	Lubrication	Manual
8	Motor	Brushless
9	Rated voltage	DC 14,4V
10	Rated power	350 W
11	Chainsaw Dimensions	40 x 20 x 7 cm
12	Weight without battery	1,2 kg
13	Weight with battery	1,44 Kg
	Battery (lithium-	ion)
1	Capacity	2,5 Ah
2	Tension	14,4V
3	Power	36,0 Wh
4	Battery weight	0,24kg
	Caricabatteri	a
1	Supply voltage	100-240V AC ,50-60Hz
2	Output voltage	DC16,8V
3	Charging current	1,4A
4	Protection class	П
5	Charging time	3 h

#### 9. Battery charging



Do not expose the battery to extreme conditions such as excessive temperatures or shocks. Injury can be caused by the loss of battery material.



Disconnect the battery from the tool before start charging.

Make sure the battery is dry and clean before start charging.

- Make sure the battery is fully charged before using it for the first time.
- The battery is not fully charged when purchased, charge it for 3-4 hours before using it for the first time.
- The battery must be replaced if its life start being insufficient. Use only the original batteries supplied by the manufacturer.
- Respect the safety and environmental protection guidelines during each phase.

#### 9.1. Battery charging procedure

- Recharge indoor, temperature between + 10 ° C and 45 ° C.
- Make sure that the characteristics of the charger and the battery are aligned before starting the recharge.
- The red LED on the charger indicates that the battery is charging, the green LED indicates that it is fully charged. The approximate charging time is 3 to 4 hours, do not keep the battery connected longer than necessary as they may be damaged.
- The charger has three ways, it is possible to charge up to 3 batteries at the same time. The charging time is proportional to the number of batteries connected and to the state of their charge. Monitor the charging time by the LED indicator (red light in charge, green light end of charge).
- Disconnect the battery charger connector from the battery once the charge is complete.
- Make sure the battery is charged at least every 3 months when not in use. Do not store the machine with the battery connected.

#### **10.Working environment**

- Keep the temperature between 10°C and 45°C during the charging phase and between 0°C and 45°C during use.
- Keep the tool temperature between 0 ° C and 60 ° C during use.
- Do not use it in an explosive environment or near flammable materials or liquids.
- Do not use it in rainy weather or on wet branches.



#### **11.Initial assembly**

The chainsaw is ready for use, before inserting the battery check the following points:

• Check that the chainsaw and batteries are clean and dry

- Check the chain tension. If too slow or too tense, act as specified in paragraph 15.4
- Fill the oil tank as specified in paragraph 15.5
- Check that the two locking nuts are screwed properly
- Check that the spring of the chain cover works properly

Insert the battery into the special location of the chainsaw until it clicks, checking that it is locked.



#### **12.Early working procedures**



Wear suitable gloves and clothing before using this tool. Check the tool before working and verify the correct operation of the switch. The chain must stop when the trigger is released. Do not use the chainsaw if the switch fails. Check that the battery voltage matches the tool voltage.



The engine stops when the trigger is released, but the chain will continue moving by inertia for a few seconds. Do not touch the chain while it is moving to avoid the risk of injury or wounds.

- $\cdot$  Hold the saw firmly.
- $\cdot$  Make sure that the chain and bar are not in contact with any object.
- $\cdot$  Press the safety button with your thumb to unlock the trigger.
- · Press the trigger all the way down, the machine starts.
- · Do not exceed the cutting dimensions to protect the saw and battery from possible damages.
- $\cdot$  Do not cut branches larger than those indicated in the technical specifications.
- $\cdot$  Release the trigger if the chain is blocked, the engine stops.

**Warning**: in case of a blocked chain, before intervening, release the trigger and remove the battery.

# **13. Instructions for cutting**



Use appropriate clothing, use protective shoes with non-slip soles.

Use protective gloves



Use protective glasses



Danger of cutting and serious injury

# Warning!

In particular situations, the chain and handle could reach high temperatures. It is recommended to handle the chainsaw with care using protective gloves.

# Warning!

If the branch to be cut is under tension, the bar could get stuck and the user will lose control of the saw, resulting in serious injury.

Therefore, first of all make a lightening cut (1) on the pressure side (A), then a cross-cutting cut (2) on the pulling side (B).





- Always keep the chainsaw at full speed.
- Do not cut using the end of the bar.
- Keep the bar vertical.
- Constantly check that the lubrication is working correctly.
- While moving the chainsaw from one branch to another, release the trigger to stop the chain.
- While using the tool, keep every other part of the body at a minimum distance of 15 cm from the chain.
- Keep passers-by and other people at a minimum distance of 1.5m.
- Do not use the tool in the rain or in humid environments.
- After use, remove the battery from the chainsaw.



Warning: in case of difficult cut, check the battery charge and the correct sharpening and tension of the chain.

# 14.Cleaning and maintenance

Tools to be repaired should be brought to the service center. The use of original parts will ensure the correct and safe operation of the tool.



Disconnect the battery from the tool before checking, doing maintainance, repairing or cleaning the tool to avoid the danger of accidental tool activation.

# Warning!

In particular situations, the chain and handle could reach high temperatures. It is recommended to handle the chainsaw with care using protective gloves.



Wear protective gloves before carrying out operations on the chain.

# Warning!

Before any maintenance or cleaning operations, remove the battery from the chainsaw. Accidental starting can cause serious injury.

Frequent checks of the tool will make it safe and reliable.

- Keep the handle, any motor ventilation devices clean, use a cloth to clean the tool. Do not use detergents to clean the tool to avoid damaging the surfaces.
- Clean the body of the chainsaw with a damp cloth.
- Remove the protective pinion cover.
- Clean the area around the pinion and the body with a damp cloth.
- Remove the bar and the chain as specified in paragraph 14.2
- Clean the oil outlet (1), oil inlet (2) and rear bar slot (3) and the cooling grid (4) with a soft brush.



Clean the chain with a soft brush.

Assemble again the bar, the chain and the cover as specified in paragraph 14.3



#### 14.1. Maintenance

General maintenance, cleaning, lubrication and the replacement of the chain and / or bar require disassembly and assembly of the chainsaw.



#### 14.2. Chain and bar disassembly

- Disconnect the battery from the chainsaw.
- Use the Allen wrench supplied to unscrew the ocking nut (1) and remove the cover (2).
- Unscrew counterclockwise the chain tension adjusting screw 3 to loosen the tension.
- Remove the chain and bar ⑦.

#### 14.3. Chain and bar assembly

- Disconnect the battery from the chainsaw.
- Adjust the tension adjustment screw ③, place the bar ⑦ on the chainsaw body ④ and insert the guide plate fixing column ⑤ into the fixing hole ⑥ on the bar ⑦.
- Insert the chain into the bar slot.
- Assemble the pinion cover (2) and tighten the locking nut (1).

#### 14.4. Chain tension

While using the chainsaw, the chain overheats and could stretch. If necessary, adjust the chain tension as indicated below.

- Disconnect the battery from the chainsaw.
- Use the Allen wrench supplied to slightly loosen the locking nut 1.

• Unscrew (to decrease the tension) or screw (to increase the tension) the chain tension adjustment screw ③.

• By helping you with the protective gloves, pull the chain down and check that the guide links of the chain are still visible for half the height in the lower part of the bar.

- Supersonantinspansonanterson
- If the guide links are fully visible when pulling the chain down, or if they are not visible at all, it means that the tension is incorrect.
- Repeat the adjustment.
- Tighten the two locknuts ①.

#### Warning!

The chain pinion must not be disassembled by the user, but by at a specialized service center. If the chain pinion is damaged, do not use the chainsaw and take it to a specialized service center.

#### 14.5. Chain Lubrication

The chainsaw is equipped with an oil tank with an integrated pump to keep the chain lubricated and cool.

To fill the oil tank, follow the instructions.

- Disconnect the battery from the chainsaw.
- Place the chainsaw in a horizontal position with the oil cap facing upwards.
- Clean the oil cap, the tank and the surrounding environment with a damp cloth.
- Unscrew the oil cap and remove it.
- Fill the tank to the appropriate level and prevent it from overflowing.
- Use UNIVERSAL BIODEGRADABLE FLUID FOR CHAINSAWS BARS AND CHAINS
- Firmly screw the oil cap.



- The chain is lubricated by pressing on the pump located on the tank cap.
- Each time the tank is filled, press the pump on the cap 2 or 3 times to ensure that the oil comes out on the chain.
- During use, check that there is always oil on the chain and press the pump on the cap as required.
- Constantly check the oil level in the tank and refill it if necessary.

Check for correct lubrication:

- Press the pump on the cap 2 or 3 times.
- Switch on the chainsaw.
- Press the safety switch and then the trigger to activate the chainsaw.
- Check that the oil is flowing out as shown below.



If no oil is flowing out, check if you have filled the tank.

If no oil is flowing out when the tank is full, carry out maintenance/cleaning of the chainsaw in accordance with section 14 of the user manual.

#### 14.7 Pinion and bar inspection

- Disconnect the battery from the chainsaw.
- Use the Allen key supplied to unscrew the locking nut (1) and remove the cover (2).
- Remove the chain and the bar.
- Measure the depth of the chain groove using a depth gauge.

• If the depth of the groove exceeds 0.5 mm, do not use the chainsaw and contact the service center to replace the pinion of the chain.

• Measure the depth of the pinion of the chain slot using a depth gauge.

• If the depth is less than 1.1mm, if the bar is damaged or the slot is deformed, replace the bar to avoid damaging the chain and the chainsaw.







### 15.Storage

The most important thing to keep in mind before storing your chainsaw is the lithium-ion battery. Make sure that the batteries are fully charged.

If storing the battery for a long time with low charge will damage the battery and invalidate the warranty.

- 1) Make sure the battery is fully charged.
- 2) Avoid storing the device in extremely hot or cold environments.
- 3) If the device will not be used for a long time, please remove the battery before storing it.

4) Batteries and chargers should be placed in a safe place to prevent the entry of heat, dust and humidity.

5) Batteries should be stored in a dry environment.

Suggested storage temperatures:

less than 1 month	-20°C ~ +60°C
Less than 6 months	-10°C ~ +35°C
More than 6 months	0°C ~ +30°C

- The battery must be kept at a distance of at least 1.5m from possible flammable substances.
- For good battery maintenance, fully charge it before storage. Charge at least once per 4 months during long periods of disuse.

### 16.Disposal

• Remove the battery from the tool; dispose the battery, the tool, the accessories and the packaging according to the type of material.



- Do not dispose the tool with household waste
- Take the tool to a waste collection center. Metal and plastic parts can be recycled. For more detailed information contact the service center.



- LI-ION Do not dispose the battery in household waste, do not burn, do not immerse in water. In case of gas or liquid leakage, the battery can cause damage to the environment and health.
- Before disposing the battery, discharge it completely. It is recommended to cover the poles with adhesive tape to prevent short circuits. Do not disassemble the battery.
- Dispose the batteries in accordance with local regulations. The battery must be taken to a waste collection center and disposed in an environmental- friendly way. For detailed information consult your local waste disposal offices or our service center.
- Dispose the pruned branches in the designated bins. Do not dispose them with household waste.



#### **17.Spare parts**

The manufacturer can supply high quality original spare parts:

- Batteries
- Battery chargers
- Chains

Contact us in case of need.

#### 18.Warranty

The warranty covers 24 months for private users and 12 months for professional users. The warranty covers mechanical parts, including battery, charger, motor and transmission mechanism. The warranty is not valid in the following cases:

- Wrong use of the tool
- Maintenance not performed as indicated in this user manual
- Modifications made on the tool
- Tool damages even if caused by mistake
- Damages caused by reparations operated by unqualified people
- Natural events
- Lack of the battery charge with the required frequency
- Components subject to wear during normal use (eg chain, bar) are excluded from the warranty.

The warranty is valid only for products that have been registered through the website within 30 days of the date of purchase.

For more information you can write to

#### info@volpioriginale.it

Activate the warranty of your new electronic tool through our website:

#### https://www.volpioriginale.it/registra-il-tuo-prodotto/



The buyer must also keep a copy of the sales document (receipt, invoice) and of the warranty registration: a copy of these documents has to be delivered to the Dealer or Authorized Repairer together with the machine to be repaired. In the absence of these documents, the machine will be considered in any case out of warranty.

# 19. Troubleshooting

Make sure that the tool is repaired only by qualified people from our service centers, using only original parts as spare parts.

This will ensure the life and the safety of the tool.

Problem	Possible cause	Corrective action	
	Low battery	Charge the battery	
La chainsaw does not work	Battery disconnected	Connect the battery	
WULK .	Switch malfunction	Send to the service center	
Intermittent eneration	Loose internal connections	Send to the service center	
ntermittent operation	Switch malfunction		
	Ruined chain	Replace the chain	
Chain heated	Poor lubrication	Check the lubrication	
	Damaged bar	Replace the bar	
	There is no lubrication, resulting in excessive friction	Check the lubrication	
Bad cutting surface	Ruined chain	Replace the chain	
	The cut result is poor	Read carefully the user's manual	
2	The battery is not fully charged	Charge the battery	
It does not charge. Red	The charger connector is not inserted correctly in the battery	Insert the connector correctly	
	The charger is not properly connected to the power socket	Connect it properly	
ght of the charger flashes	Dirty battery poles	Clean the poles	
	Damaged battery	Replace the battery	
	Damaged Battery charger	Replace the battery charger	



# **CE DECLARATION OF CONFORMITY**

Translation from the original text

GB	Davide e	The Company <b>Luigi Volpi S.p.A.</b> – 46040 Casalromano (MN) ITALIA
		S THAT THE MACHINE
	Туре:	Chainsaw
	Model:	KVS5100
	DIRECTIVE 200 DIRECTIVE 201 DIRECTIVE 201 DIRECTIVE 201 ce to the relevant harmonized stand	4/30/UE Electromagnetic Compatibility
EN 55014-1	12100:2010	EN 60745-1:2009 EN 60335-1:2012
EN 55014-1		EN 60335-2-29:2004
EN 61000-3		EN 62233:2008
EN 61000-3		EN 62133:2013
Casa	Iromano, October 31, 2022	The legal representativ Eligio Volpi



Coecuonal and a second



# Davide e Luigi Volpi S.p.A.

Via San Rocco, 10 – 46040 Casalromano (MN) Italy www.volpioriginale.it - info@volpioriginale.it

 $\mathbf{\Sigma}$ 

YLBKVS5100\_0-Libretto d'uso ITA\_ENG

JUCH